
From: @meta.com>
Sent: Thursday, 16 May 2024 11:28 AM
To: Gannon, Bridget; Irwin, Andrew; Hyles, Andrew
Cc:
Subject: Catch up?

Hi Bridget, Andrew I & Andrew H,  

I hope you are all well during a no doubt busy Budget Week. 

I wanted to touch base and see if you had Ɵme to catch up on next Monday 20th May, 2024 either late 
morning or aŌernoon? Given the significant number of reforms we’re all working on together, I thought it 
might be helpful to connect and share updates. 

Let me know if there are some Ɵmes that work. I’ll be in Canberra to meet with   so can come 
to you all. 

Kind regards,  

 

‐‐  
 | Australia, Japan, Korea, New Zealand & Pacific Islands 

M:   | E:  @ĩ.com 
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From: @google.com>
Sent: Thursday, 20 June 2024 7:17 AM
To: Gannon, Bridget
Cc:  
Subject: Re: Canberra catch up [SEC=UNOFFICIAL]

Morning Bridget.  

Thanks for coming back to me and apologies for the delayed response ‐ it's been somewhat hectic! 

Possible times from our side:  

 Tuesday 25 June between 1 and 3
 Thursday 27 June after 11

Please let me know if there is a window that works for you.   

We are keen to discuss the full suite of issues currently on our plates but in particular the age verification trial.  

Cheers,  

  

@google.com 

On Sun, Jun 2, 2024 at 4:11 PM Gannon, Bridget <Bridget.Gannon@infrastructure.gov.au> wrote: 

UNOFFICIAL 

Hi   

Yep 😊– the weekend after estimates is always better than the weekend before! 

The afternoon of 24 June looks pretty good. 

Is there a time that suits you best? I’ve cc’d  who can help us find a time. 

Looking forward to seeing you and Lucinda. 

Cheers, 
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BG 

  

Bridget Gannon (she/her) 

Online Safety, Media and Platforms Division 

bridget.gannon@infrastructure.gov.au  

P +61 2 6136    •  M    

UNOFFICIAL 

  

From:  @google.com>  
Sent: Sunday, 2 June 2024 3:53 PM 
To: Gannon, Bridget <Bridget.Gannon@infrastructure.gov.au> 
Cc:  @google.com> 
Subject: Canberra catch up 

  

Hi Bridget, 

  

I hope this finds you well and relieved with Estimates behind you!  

  

 I will be in Canberra the week of 24 June and thought it would be a good opportunity to touch base on 
the many work streams currently underway.   

  

Would you be free to meet with us either in the afternoon of Tuesday 25 June or the morning of Thursday 27 
June?   

  

Cheers,  

 
  

 

@google.com 
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From: @apple.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 2 July 2024 10:53 AM
To: Gannon, Bridget
Subject: Catch up

Hi Bridget 

Great to bump into you last week. Hope your sitting fortnight is going well. 

We caught up with the Minister’s Office and they asked us to be in touch with you about the age verification pilot. 
We could share information about how Apple has been thinking about this issue, if helpful. 

I’d propose that   join that conversation. Is there a 
time next week or the following that might especially work for you? 

Look forward to speaking then. Much appreciated ‐ cheers 

� 

2 Southbank Boulevard 
Melbourne  VIC  3006 

@apple.com

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

This correspondence is for the named person’s use only. It may contain confidential information. 
No confidentiality is waived or lost by any mistransmission. If you receive this correspondence in 
error, please immediately delete it from your system and notify the sender. You must not disclose, copy or rely on 
any part of this correspondence if you are not the intended recipient. 

Neither the sender nor Apple warrants that any communication via the Internet is free of errors, viruses, 
interception or interference. Information is distributed without warranties of any kind. 
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Page 1 of 2 

Briefing information – age assurance trial 

Overview 
• On 1 May 2024, the Australian Government committed $6.5 million in the 2024–25 Budget to

conduct a trial of age assurance technologies for access to pornography and social media.
• The Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communication and the

Arts is responsible for this trial.
• The trial will provide an independent assessment of the effectiveness of a range of different age

assurance technologies, reviewing them in relation to a range of criteria, particularly privacy and
security requirements.

The elements of the trial 
• The Trial involves technology assessments, research, consultation and policy advice.
• The technology elements include:

o Testing the market for existing technologies that could be used to limit access to online
pornography by children under 18-years-old; and

o Testing the market for existing technologies that could be used to limit access to social
media platforms for an age range between 13- to 16-years-old.

• The consultation elements include:
o Consultation with a Cross-Government Working Group, including agencies with

expertise on related technologies, and responsibility for privacy, safety and security.
o Consultation with Australian youth, through engagement with the Office for Youth.
o Stakeholder engagement with parent groups and experts, academics, industry groups,

community and civil society organisations, and First Nations representative bodies.
• The research elements include:

o Consumer research on Australians’ attitudes towards the use of age assurance
technologies for access to online services; and

o Literature review on international implementation precedents for age assurance,
academic/international evidence on age limits for social media, and social media
harms/benefits.

• The Department will provide policy advice to Government, informed by the findings of the trial,
research and consultation.

Definitions 
• Age assurance is defined by the eSafety Commissioner as a broad term that includes both age

verification and age estimation solutions. The word ‘assurance’ refers to the varying levels of
certainty different solutions offer in establishing an age.

o Age verification is defined by the eSafety Commissioner as measures that determine a
person’s age to a high level of accuracy. An example of age verification is the use of
physical or digital government identity documents to establish a person’s age.’

o Age estimation technologies provide an approximate age to allow or deny access to age-
restricted online content or services

FOI 25-093 - Document 4
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Page 2 of 2 
 

• Age assurance is not necessarily an exact science. Technology might look at language used, key 
strokes, sites accessed, and in some cases check that against the age claimed by a user to limit a 
young person’s access to harmful material. 

o This lower threshold could involve less collection of sensitive data, alleviating some 
privacy and security concerns.  
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OFFICIAL  

OFFICIAL  
1

Meeting/Event Brief

MB24-000517

To: The Hon Michelle Rowland MP, Minister for Communications 

MEETING: Age Assurance consultation with the Youth Steering Committee (Office for 
Youth)

Timing: Wednesday 14 August 2024, 11:00am – 11:50am 

Venue: Committee MG49, Australian Parliament House

Meeting with: 

• Youth Steering Committee (Office for Youth) – see bios at Attachment A
• The Hon Dr Anne Aly MP, Minister for Early Childhood Education, Minister for Youth
• The Hon Emma McBride MP, Assistant Minister for Mental Health and Suicide

Prevention, Assistant Minister for Rural and Regional Health (observer only)

You requested the meeting with the Youth Steering Committee to discuss young people’s attitudes 
towards social media and use of age assurance technology in Australia.

Our Proposed Objectives: 

To hear from young Australians about their experiences of the benefits and harms of social media; 
views on what is an appropriate age to begin using social media; and willingness to engage with 
age assurance technologies to access social media and age-restricted online content.

Their Objective:
To engage in policy and program design by providing insights to the Government on youth 
experiences.
Key Points: 
Meeting structure
1. You will give a 5-minute address at the start of the meeting and provide final remarks (see
agenda below and Talking Points at Attachment B).

11:00am Acknowledgment of Country, welcome and introductions Andrew Irwin
11:10am Address from Minister Minister Rowland 
11:15am Discussion on Age Assurance

OFY to support with the use of Mentimeter and Minister and 
DITRDCA to guide discussion. 

Youth Steering 
Committee 
members

11:45am Final remarks from the Minister Minister Rowland
11:50am Meeting close

2. The department will support you to facilitate discussion with the Youth Steering Committee.
To guide the conversation, the department, your office, and the Office for Youth agreed to 4 key
questions, supplemented by discussion prompts (see Attachment C).
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YOUTH STEERING COMMITTEE 
FACTSHEET AND COMMITTEE BIOGRAPHIES 

OFFICE FOR YOUTH 
• The Office for Youth has been established as a dedicated unit in the Department of Education to support

the contribution of young people and advocates, improve and harmonise policy across government, and
ensure government is communicating effectively with young people.

YOUTH ENGAGEMENT MODEL 
• In the 2022-23 Budget, the Australian Government committed ongoing funding to establish a new Youth

Engagement Model (the Model) to formally engage young people in policy and program design. The
initiatives under the model include

– Establishment of an Office for Youth which includes a Youth Steering Committee, an Australian
Government Interdepartmental Committee on Youth, and an Australian Government
Intergovernmental Coordination Committee on Youth.

– Development of a youth engagement strategy which was delivered in March 2024.

– Establishment of 5 youth advisory groups to work directly with Australian Government departments
and agencies on discrete policy and program development.

– Funding for the Australian Youth Affairs Coalition (AYAC) to support its critical role in youth
advocacy, engagement and research.

YOUTH STEERING COMMITTEE 
• The Committee is made up of 15 members aged 13 to 25 from across Australia. Full membership of the

Committee was announced on 6 July 2024.

• The Committee supported the development of the Australian Government’s new youth engagement
strategy, Engage! A strategy to include young people in the decisions we make.

– The Committee remains an ongoing commitment under Action 1.1 of Engage!.

• The Committee is under the direction of the Minister for Youth, and the Office for Youth.

– As part of their workplan, the Committee will support the Office for Youth to implement Engage! and
advise on whole-of-Australian-Government priorities.
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• The Committee is supported to participate in meetings and provided with leadership training and 
support through the Youth Engagement Model’s funding of AYAC. 

YOUTH STEERING COMMITTEE BIOGRAPHIES 
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OFFICIAL  

OFFICIAL  
9

ATTACHMENT B

TALKING POINTS

Opening address

• Thank you for meeting with us today to discuss the age assurance trial. This trial responds

to increasing community concern about the impact of harmful content online, for example

pornography, and of social media on young Australians.

• As outlined in the pre-briefing you received, the trial is being undertaken by my

department. Its objective is to determine the effectiveness of available age assurance

technologies as an option to:

o prevent access to online pornography by children and young people under the age

of 18; and

o age-limit access to social media platforms for an age range of between 13 and 16

years.

• As part of this work, my department and I are engaging with users of technology,

including young Australians like yourselves, parents and parenting experts, academics, the

digital industry, community and civil society groups, and First Nations representatives.

• When it comes to the two streams of the trial – the issue of access to pornography is

relatively straightforward, as this element is dealing with content that is already illegal for

children to consume. Because of that, the trial will focus on technologies that can restrict

access to these sites for people aged under 18.

• The question of an appropriate minimum age for access to social media, and the use of age

assurance technologies to enforce this, is more complicated. That’s why I thought today’s

discussion should focus on the social media element of the trial.

• At this stage, there is no clear and agreed age for limiting social media access, and both the

Prime Minister and I have made it clear that what is implemented at a Commonwealth

level must be effective. When I say ‘effective’, I mean effective in the protection – not

isolation – of young people.

• We are hearing from young people – as well as mental health organisations like Blackdog,

BeyondBlue and ReachOut – about the benefits of social media interactions as well as the

harms they experience.

• The Government wants to minimise the harm that can arise from young people using

social media and accessing content online that is not appropriate for them.
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OFFICIAL  

OFFICIAL  
10

• I want to emphasise that there are no right or wrong answers to the questions we’ll be

discussing today. It is important for me to hear from you about your lived experiences and

views on age assurance technologies and social media.

• On that note, let’s now move on to the discussion portion of today’s meeting.

[Discussion to be facilitated by the department and Office for Youth]

Closing remarks

• Thank you again for your time today.

• It’s been great to hear your insights on social media and age assurance technologies. All of

this will help my department in looking at that question of effectiveness, and help the

Government decide what to do when the trial ends.

FOI 25-093 - Document 5 - Attachment B
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Meeting/Event Brief

MB24-000546

To: The Hon Michelle Rowland MP, Minister for Communications 

MEETING: Age Assurance consultation at Special Meeting of eSafety's Youth Council

Timing:   Thursday 22 August 2024, 5.30pm AEST to 6.15pm AEST

Venue: Virtual Meeting   

Meeting with:

• eSafety Youth Council – see bios at Attachment A
• Julie Inman Grant, eSafety Commissioner
• Delia Rickard, Independent Reviewer

You will be attending the first half of a Special Meeting with the eSafety Youth Council to discuss 
young people’s attitudes towards social media and use of age assurance technology in Australia.
This is your first meeting with the new Youth Council members, who commenced their term in 
April 2024.

Our Proposed Objectives:

To hear from youth representatives about their experiences of benefits and harms of social media; 
views on what is an appropriate age to begin using social media; and willingness to engage with 
age assurance technologies to access social media and age-restricted online content.

Their Objective:
To engage in policy and program design by sharing insights and experiences about online safety 
with eSafety and the Government from a youth perspective. 

Key Points: 
Meeting structure
1. The meeting is separated in two parts – you will give an address after introductions, and then
participate in an interactive session on age assurance with the Youth Council members. Talking
points are at Attachment B and the agenda is at Attachment C.
2. In the second part of the meeting, the department will support Delia Rickard to participate in
a session on the Independent Review of the Online Safety Act 2021, which you are not expected to
attend. eSafety have advised that the eSafety Commissioner is also expected to leave at the end of
the session on age assurance.

3. The department will support you to facilitate discussion with the Youth Council.
To guide the conversation, the Council has received briefing material ahead of the meeting,
including a list of key questions supplemented by discussion prompts. This material was agreed
between the department, your office, and eSafety, and is available at Attachment D.
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ATTACHMENT A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

These are the details of all 17 members of the Youth Council. However, we understand that 
not all members are able to attend the meeting.
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ATTACHMENT B

TALKING POINTS

Opening address

• Thank you for meeting with us today to discuss the age assurance trial and the Online

Safety Act Review.

• I will be here for the first part of the meeting to talk about age assurance and I will then

leave you with Delia to talk about the review of the Online Safety Act.

• Delia is reviewing Australia’s online safety laws and will make recommendations to

Government on how we might strengthen our laws.

• The age assurance trial responds to increasing community concern about the impact of

harmful content online, for example pornography, and of social media on young

Australians.

Background to the trial

• I understand my department has provided some pre-briefing material about the trial it is

undertaking. The trial’s objective is to determine the effectiveness of available age

assurance technologies as an option to:

o prevent access to online pornography by children and young people under the age

of 18; and

o age-limit access to social media platforms for an age range of between 13 and 16

years.

• That’s why we are engaging with users of technology, including young Australians like

yourselves, parents and parenting experts, academics, the digital industry, community and

civil society groups, and First Nations representatives to inform our work.

• Keeping young people safe online through the use of age assurance is complex, as it

involves the balancing of accuracy, privacy, and security considerations in a

rapidly-changing industry. That is the key issue we’re looking at – whether effective age

assurance technologies can be implemented here in Australia.

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

assurance technologies to enforce this, is more complicated. That’s why I’m suggesting

today’s discussion focus on the social media element of the trial.

Young peoples’ unique perspective 

• We understand that consultation with young people is vital to finding the right solution.

Much of the debate to date has been people talking about children and families – and we

need to talk with them to make sure that whatever we come up with hits the mark.

• If we are going to regulate young people’s use of social media we need to take young

people’s and their parents views, needs and interests into account.

• Last week I met with another energetic group of young people from the Office of Youth’s

Youth Steering Committee. It was a great discussion and the whole group engaged

meaningfully and shared a range of views. I am looking forward to a similar discussion

today.

• We are hearing from young people – as well as mental health organisations like Blackdog,

BeyondBlue and ReachOut – about the benefits of social media interactions as well as the

harms they experience.

Parents’ Roundtable 

• Last week, I also attended a roundtable with parents and parent groups to hear directly

about their views and concerns about the benefits and harms of social media and attitudes

towards age assurance technologies.

• What I heard from that discussion is that parents see the harms that are present for children

on social media and want action from Government and from platforms to address these

issues.

• They also recognise that children engaging with each other online can have great benefits

and that young people’s digital literacy skills development is important.

Enforcing a minimum age for social media

• I acknowledge that the issue of social media access is complex and that the Government’s

response must balance the need to keep children safe while also protecting their privacy

and allowing them to develop digital literacy.

• To determine the correct minimum age for social media, we have to understand what

harms we are trying to protect children from experiencing. Only then can we decide what

age young people are resilient and mature enough to engage in these environments.
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• Australia is not alone in seeking more accountability for platforms to enforce their own

age limits. We are also not alone in questioning whether 13 is an appropriate minimum

age, with countries including France, UK and the United States all taking steps to increase

and enforce a minimum age.

• We are here to listen to your views about what an appropriate age could be. But one thing

both the Prime Minister and I have made clear is that any age limit must be effective.

When I say ‘effective’, I mean effective in the protection – not isolation – of young

people.

• Importantly, we are very much a joined-up government working together to get this right.

This means we’re working closely across portfolios like youth and mental health. I’d

particularly like to thank Julie for eSafety’s assistance in facilitating today’s conversation.

Today’s Roundtable

• I want to emphasise that there are no right or wrong answers to the questions we’ll be

discussing today. It is important for me to hear from you about your lived experiences and

views on age assurance technologies and social media.

• On that note, let’s now move on to the interactive discussion portion of today’s meeting.

[Discussion to be facilitated by the department]

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
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Youth Council: Age Assurance Trial (Part 1) 

The age assurance trial 

 On 1 May 2024, the Australian Government committed $6.5 million in the 2024–25 Budget for the

Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communication and the Arts (the

department) to conduct a trial of age assurance technologies.

What is age assurance? 

 Age assurance is a broad term that includes both age verification and age estimation. The word

‘assurance’ refers to the different levels of certainty that technologies provide when establishing a user’s

age.

 Age verification determines a person’s age to a high level of accuracy. An example is the use of physical

or digital government identity documents.

 Age estimation provides an approximate age of a person. This lower threshold could involve less

collection of personal data.

 Age assurance technologies might examine a user’s identity documents like a driver’s license, facial

features in a photo or live video, voice, key strokes, language used online or the sites they have

accessed.

What is the trial doing? 

 The age assurance trial will include an independent technical assessment of a range of age assurance

technologies, reviewing their effectiveness in relation to various criteria, including accuracy, privacy and

security requirements. This assessment will look at 2 streams, considering age assurance technologies

that could be used to limit access to:

o online pornography by children and young people under the age of 18; and

o social media platforms for an age range of between 13 and 16 years.

 As part of the trial, the department is speaking with a range of groups, including young people, parent

groups, academics, industry groups, community organisations, and First Nations bodies.

 The department has also established a Cross-Government Working Group that brings together

government agencies with expertise on age assurance, privacy, safety and security.

 The age assurance trial also involves research into consumer attitudes on the use of these technologies,

international approaches, evidence surrounding age limits for social media, and the harms and benefits

associated with social media use.

 In combination, the technical assessment, consultation and research outcomes will help the department

develop advice to Government at the conclusion of the trial. Government can then decide on the next

steps.

Why do we want to speak to young Australians? 

 The Government wants to minimise the harm that can arise from young people accessing content online

that is not appropriate for them and using social media. However, for age assurance technologies to

keep young people safe online, they need to be effective. We understand that it is critical to get privacy

and security right, and that the conversation around young people’s use of social media is complex.

 During the session, we want to hear from you about your experiences on social media (good and bad),

how likely you would be to use different age assurance technologies to access social media, and what

other initiatives you might like to see from Government to support you to have safe experiences online.
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Youth Council: Discussion Questions (Part 1) 

Question 1: Why do you use social media? What do you enjoy about social media? Is there a particular 
platform you prefer? 

Discussion prompts: 

 What kind of benefits does social media bring? 

 Can social media be harmful – and, if so, what are the harms that concern you? 

 Are some platforms more beneficial or harmful than others?  

 Do you have any ideas on what you might want to spend your time doing if you were not spending 
as much time on social media?  

Question 2: Currently, most platforms say you must be 13 to create a social media account. How 
would you feel if this minimum age was increased as a legal requirement? What age do you think 
would be reasonable?

Discussion prompts: 

 Do you have any thoughts on the benefits and/or negative consequences of age limits? 

 [If the majority of the group agrees on a particular age] Why do you think this age is most 
appropriate? 

Question 3: How likely would you be to use an age assurance technology to access social media? For 
example, providing your ID or using facial recognition to prove that you meet the minimum age 
requirement. 

Discussion prompts: 

 What is your current understanding of the different types of age assurance technologies and would 
the differences impact on your willingness to take up or apply these technologies in your social 
media use?  

 What would make you more or less likely to use age assurance (e.g. privacy settings, security for 
data, accessibility concerns)? 

 How effective do you think age assurance would be in keeping underage people away from social 
media? 

Question 4: Aside from age assurance, are there other supports or government actions that you think 
could help improve safety in online environments? 

Discussion prompts: 

 Who should be primarily responsible for the safety of young people online? The Government? 
Platforms? Parents?  

 What actions should those who are responsible take to keep you safe? 

 Are you aware of how to access help/support if you have personally experienced harm online/if 
you’re worried about issues like sextortion, violent content or image-based abuse? 

 What sort of education would help young people understand the benefits and risks of social media 
and how to use it safely (e.g. advertising campaigns, school curriculum, digital literacy programs)? 
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Page 7 of 16 
 

Discussion prompts: 

• Do you have any thoughts on the benefits and/or negative consequences of age limits? 

• [If the majority of the group agrees on an age] Why do you think this age is most appropriate? 

~6.03pm 

Question 3: How likely would you be to use an age assurance technology to access social media? For 

example, providing your ID or using facial recognition to prove you meet the minimum age requirement.  

Discussion prompts: 

• Do you understand the different types of age assurance technologies and would the differences 

impact on your willingness to take up or apply these technologies in your social media use?  

• What would make you more or less likely to use age assurance (e.g. privacy settings, security for 

data, accessibility concerns)? 

• How effective do you think age assurance would be in keeping underage people away from social 

media? 

~6.12pm 

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

MB24-000578

To: The Hon Michelle Rowland MP, Minister for Communications

MEETING: Age Assurance Trial – Parents Roundtable 

Timing: Friday 16 August 2024, 10:30am – 12:00pm      

Venue: Virtual Meeting – MS Teams     

Meeting with: Parents and parents’ groups – see bios at Attachment A

The meeting with parents and parents’ groups is to discuss attitudes towards young people using 
social media and use of age assurance technology in Australia.

Our Proposed Objectives:

To hear from Australian parents about their experiences of the harms and benefits of their children 
using social media; views on what is an appropriate age to begin using social media; and 
willingness to engage with age assurance technologies to access social media and age-restricted 
online content.

Their Objective:
To provide insights to the Government on parent experiences and shape policy design.
Key Points: 
1. You will give a 5-minute address at the start of the meeting (see agenda below and Talking
Points at Attachment B).
Meeting structure

10:30am Welcome and Acknowledgement of Country (10 mins) Andrew Irwin

10:40am Opening Address from Minister Rowland (5 mins) Minister Rowland

10:45am Facilitated discussion (facilitated by Andrew Irwin) (1 hours) All 

11:45am Concluding remarks (15 mins) Andrew Irwin

12:00pm Close

2. The department invited 24 parent groups and requested that they invite parents with lived
experience to the discussion. To date, 22 participants from 10 groups have accepted the invitation.
The department is following up with remaining invitees.
3. The department will support you and facilitate discussion with the parents. To guide the
conversation, the department and your office agreed to 5 questions, supplemented by discussion
prompts (see Attachment C).
4. The attendees have been provided information about the age assurance trial as part of the
invite (see Attachment D).
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ATTACHMENT B
TALKING POINTS

• Thank you for taking the time from your busy schedules and meeting with us today to

discuss the age assurance trial. This trial responds to increasing community concern about

the impact of harmful content online, for example pornography, and of social media on

young Australians.

• You as parents and representatives of parents are best placed to bring your experience to

the discussion.

• Earlier this week I had the pleasure of meeting an energetic group of young people – those

who’ll be directly affected by age assurance. It was a great discussion and the whole group

engaged meaningfully and shared a range of views.

• I was supported by my colleagues the Minister for Youth, Dr Anne Aly and the Assistant

Minister for Mental Health and Suicide Prevention, Emma McBride. Which is to say we

are very much a joined-up government working together to get this right.

Background to the trial

• My department has provided some pre-briefing materials about the trial it is undertaking.

The trial’s objective is to determine the effectiveness of available age assurance

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

• That’s why we are engaging with users of technology, including parents and parenting

experts like yourselves, young Australians, academics, the digital industry, community and

civil society groups, and First Nations representatives to inform our work.

• Keeping our children safe online through the use of age assurance is complex, as it

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

Parents’ unique perspective 

• We understand that consultation with young people and their parents and carers is vital to

finding the right solution. Much of the debate to date has been people talking about

children and families – and we need to talk with them to make sure that whatever we come

up with hits the mark.

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

• From a parents’ perspective – I know how time poor parents are, and we don’t want to set

up a source of tension in the household between children, their parents and carers.

• I acknowledge that the issue of social media access is complex and that the Government’s

response must balance the need to keep our children safe while also protecting their

privacy and allowing them to develop digital literacy.

• Up until now, parents have shouldered the challenge of deciding whether their children

have social media access, without clear guidance on the impact these services have on

their developing minds as well as their physical and mental wellbeing.

Enforcing a minimum age for social media

• To determine the correct minimum age for social media, we have to understand what

harms we are trying to protect children from experiencing. Only then can we decide what

age children are resilient and mature enough to engage in these environments.

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

• I note that South Australia and New South Wales governments are holding a joint summit

on social media in October and they will also be engaging with parents and parenting

groups. We appreciate you are engaging with many levels of government on these issues.
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

• The objective of today’s Roundtable is to establish how the Government and parents can

work together to minimise the harm that can arise from young people using social media

and accessing content online that is not appropriate for them.

• On that note, I’ll hand over to Andrew Irwin from the department to facilitate the

discussion portion of today’s meeting.

[Discussion to be facilitated by the department]
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The age assurance trial 
On 1 May 2024, the Australian Government announced $6.5 million in 2024–25 to conduct a trial of age 
assurance technologies. The Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, 
Communication and the Arts (the department) is facilitating the trial.  

Why do we want to speak to Australian parents? 
The Government wants to minimise the harm that can arise from young people accessing content online 
that is not appropriate for them. We want to understand the impact social media is having on Australian 
children and explore an appropriate age for accessing social media. Parents are uniquely placed to share 
experiences with children accessing age restricted content and social media. However, for age assurance 
technologies to keep young people safe online, they need to be effective and it is critical to get privacy and 
security right. We acknowledge that the conversation around youth’s use of social media is complex.  

During the parents’ roundtable, we want to hear from you about your and your children’s experiences using 
social media (good and bad), your experience of any instance of children accessing online pornography, how 
willing you are to use different age assurance technologies to access social media and age restricted content, 
and what other initiatives you might like to see from Government to support you to keep your children safe 
online. 

What is age assurance? 
Age assurance is a broad term that includes both age verification and age estimation solutions. The word 
‘assurance’ refers to the varying levels of certainty different solutions offer in establishing an age. 
Technologies might examine a user’s identity documents, facial features, voice, key strokes, language used 
online or sites accessed. 

• Age verification measures determine a person’s age to a high level of accuracy. An example is the
use of physical or digital government identity documents to establish a person’s age.

• Age estimation technologies provide an approximate age of a person. This lower threshold could
involve less collection of personal data.

What is the trial doing? 
The age assurance trial will involve an independent assessment of a range of age assurance technologies, 
reviewing their effectiveness in relation to various criteria, including accuracy, privacy and security 
requirements. This assessment will look at 2 streams, considering age assurance technologies that could be 
used to prevent access to: 

• online pornography by children and young people under the age of 18; and
• social media platforms for an age range of between 13 and 16 years.

As part of the trial, the department is speaking with a range of stakeholders, including youth, parent groups, 
academics, industry groups, community organisations, and First Nations bodies. The department has also 
established a Cross-Government Working Group that brings together government agencies with expertise on 
age assurance, privacy, safety and security. 

The age assurance trial also involves researching how parents, young people and other consumers feel about 
using these technologies, international approaches, evidence surrounding age limits for social media, and 
the harms and benefits associated with social media use. 

The technology assessment, consultation and research outcomes will help the department develop advice to 
Government at the conclusion of the trial. Government can then decide on the next steps.  
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Background: If asked 
Definitions 
• Age assurance is defined by the eSafety Commissioner as a broad umbrella term which includes

both age verification and age estimation solutions. The word ‘assurance’ refers to the varying
levels of certainty different solutions offer in establishing an age or age range.

o Age verification is defined by the eSafety Commissioner as measures which determine a
person’s age to a high level of accuracy. An example of age verification is the use of
physical or digital government identity documents to establish a person’s age.’
 Age verification often gives rise to considerations of security and privacy.

o Age estimation technologies provide an approximate age to allow or deny access to age-
restricted online content or services

• Age assurance is not an exact science. Technology might look at language used, key strokes, sites
accessed, and in some cases check that against the age claimed by a user to limit a young
person’s access to harmful material.

o This lower threshold could involve less collection of sensitive data, alleviating some
privacy and security concerns.

• ‘Age gating’ is also sometimes used in discussing this topic.
o Age gating is a check at the entry to an online platform such as a website, which asks a user

to confirm that they are a certain age, such as 18 years or over.
o While age gating falls within the broad category of age assurance, it is not likely to be

regarded as a sufficient protection on younger users for the purposes of this trial. That is, it
won’t be effective.

The elements of the trial 
• The Trial involves technology assessments, research, consultation and policy advice.
• The technology elements include:

o Testing the market for technologies that exist and could be adapted to protect children
under 18 years of age from pornography; and

o Testing the market for technologies that could limit access for social media to social
media platforms for an age range between 13 to 16 years, with the ‘appropriate age’ to
be determined through other research, consultation and policy development.

• The research elements include:
o Conducting consumer research on Australians’ attitudes towards the use of age assurance

technologies for access to online services, including targeted youth consultation; and
o Research into age limits for social media. This will include seeking a literature review on

academic/international advice on age limits, international implementation precedents,
social media harms/benefits and recommendations for an age limit.

• The consultation elements include:
o Consultation with a Cross-Government Working Group, which includes agencies with

policy expertise on age assurance and related technologies, and with responsibility for
privacy, safety and security.
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o Consultation with Australian youth, through engagement with the Office for Youth.
o Stakeholder engagement with child development experts, researchers, families, industry

groups, community and civil society organisations, and First Nations representative
bodies.

• The policy advice elements include:
o The Department will provide advice to Government, informed by the findings of the trial,

research and consultation.

What the trial is not doing 
• This trial will not involve compelling online platforms or technology providers to participate, as

the Department does not have the power to compel organisations to do this.
o Procuring a testing organisation to undertake the technical assessment will instead

ensure that the results of this part of the trial are independent, and not influenced by any
platform or technology’s commercial interests.

o Platforms and technology providers would however have a strong incentive to participate
as doing so will be an important input to the trial’s findings, which could in turn lead to
regulatory obligations.

o And while the Department cannot compel participation, we will definitely be reaching out
to a range of services and providers as part of the consultation, and would expect the
independent assessor to do so as well.

• Additionally, it is important to note that the trial is not aimed at producing a government
endorsement for, or procurement of, a single product, technology or technologies.

o Instead, it is an assessment of technologies available to Australians.
o It will provide guidance as to whether the market is mature, and able to provide effective

age assurance.
o It will provide advice to the Government and the Regulator on enforcement of codes and

policy going forward.

• We are not aware of a country that has completely ‘solved’ age assurance as a policy challenge.

o We are closely monitoring the work by likeminded governments such as the UK, and

discussing lessons learned with them on this topic.

FOI 25-093 - Document 12

64 of 97

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r t

he
 F

re
ed

om
 o

f I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ac

t 1
98

2 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f  
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 T
ra

ns
po

rt,
 R

eg
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ar
ts



OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL 
Roundtable: Parent groups Page 9 of 11 

What ages have been proposed for social media access? 

Source Age proposed Notes 
Australian Government 
Privacy Law 

18 The Australian Government 
response to the Privacy Act 
Review agrees with the 
Review’s recommendation 
that a child be defined as an 
individual not yet 18 years 
of age, and agrees to 
establish a Children’s Online 
Privacy Code.   

Office of the Australian 
Information Commissioner 

15 The Australian Privacy 
Principles guidelines allow 
organisations to presume 
that an individual over 15 
can consent to privacy 
decisions, where it not 
practicable for that 
organisation to assess 
capacity on a case-by-case 
basis.   

New South Wales 16 Hosting a Social Media 
Summit in October 

Queensland 14 Recommended that parents 
should limit social media 
access for children under 
14, support children as 
social media is introduced, 
and restrict time until 
healthy habits are 
established. 

South Australia Ban for under 14 and 
parental permission for 
under-16s. 

Has appointed former Chief 
Justice of the High Court 
Robert French AC to 
conduct a legal examination 
into banning children under 
the age of 14 from having 
social media accounts. 

Victoria No specific age proposed The Premier has called for a 
national response to social 
media. 

TikTok 13 Per their Terms of Service 
Instagram 13 Per their Terms of Service – 

“You must be at least 13 
years old or the minimum 
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legal age in your country to 
use Instagram.” 
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From: Age Assurance Trial
To:

 Irwin, Andrew; 
Subject: Age Assurance Virtual Roundtable - Academia/Experts [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Background - Age Assurance Trial.pdf

OFFICIAL

 

Thank you for confirming your attendance at the Age Assurance Virtual Roundtable, to hear directly from Australian academics about the available
evidence around the harms and benefits of children using social media, an appropriate minimum age for social media access, and attitudes towards age
assurance technologies. 

 

Please find a MS teams link below. Attached is a one page brief on the purpose of the discussion and background on the Age Assurance Trial.
Discussion questions will be shared prior to the meeting. 

 

We look forward to your attendance and hearing from you. 

 

Kind regards

Age Assurance Trial Taskforce

 

_____________________________________________________________________________

Microsoft Teams Need help? <https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-GB> 

Join the meeting now <https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________

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

Why do we want to speak to Australian academics and experts? 
The Government wants to minimise the harm that can arise from young people accessing content online 
that is not appropriate for them. We want to understand the impact social media is having on Australian 
children and explore an appropriate age for accessing social media. However, for age assurance technologies 
to keep young people safe online, they need to be effective and it is critical to get privacy and security right. 
We acknowledge that the conversation around youth’s use of social media is complex.  

During the academia roundtable, we want to hear from you about the evidence behind the effect of children 
using social media (good and bad), how willing Australians are to use different age assurance technologies to 
access social media and age restricted content, and what other initiatives might be effective from 
Government to support keeping children safe online. 

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

 Age verification measures determine a person’s age to a high level of accuracy. An example is the
use of physical or digital government identity documents to establish a person’s age.

 Age estimation technologies provide an approximate age of a person. This lower threshold could
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

 online pornography by children and young people under the age of 18; and
 social media platforms for an age range of between 13 and 16 years.

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

The age assurance trial also involves researching how consumers feel about using these technologies, 
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
 

GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601, Australia 
 (02) 6274 7111  infrastructure.gov.au  

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

  
  

 

20/08/2024 

 

To whom it may concern 

Age Assurance Trial 

I’m writing to seek your engagement on the Government’s trial of age assurance technology. On 1 May 2024, 
the Australian Government announced $6.5 million in funding for an age assurance trial, to examine options 
to protect children from harmful content such as pornography, age-restricted online services, and social 
media. 

The Trial responds to increasing community concern about the impact of online pornography and social media 
on Australian children.  The Government has tasked the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional 
Development, Communications, and the Arts (DITRDCA) to progress the trial, which aims to determine the 
effectiveness of available age assurance technologies as an option for addressing both:  

 Access to pornography by those under the age of 18; and 

 Access to social media by children in the 13 to 16+ years age band. 

The Trial will also consider the right minimum age for access to social media by children. 

Invitation to Roundtable  

You are invited to attend a Virtual Roundtable discussion at 10am Australian Eastern Standard Time 
(Sydney/Melbourne/Canberra) on Tuesday, 27 August 2024. The Roundtable will seek to understand the age 
assurance and detection practices of industry, including planned responses to age related regulations 
internationally, and to gain insight into industry’s capability, challenges and willingness to implement further 
age assurance technologies in the Australian context.  
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From: Age Assurance Trial
To:

 Irwin, Andrew; 
Subject: Age Assurance Trial Virtual Roundtable - Industry [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Background - Age Assurance Trial.pdf

Industry Roundtable Discussion Questions.pdf

OFFICIAL

Thank you for confirming your attendance at the Age Assurance Virtual Roundtable, which will seek to understand the age assurance and detection
practices of industry, including planned responses to age related regulations internationally, and to gain insight into industry’s capability, challenges and
willingness to implement further age assurance technologies in the Australian context. 

Please find a MS teams link below. Attached are discussion questions for the meeting and a one page brief on the purpose of the discussion and
background on the Age Assurance Trial. 

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

-

OFFICIAL

FOI 25-093 - Document 18

85 of 97

s47F

s47F s22(1)(a)(ii)

s22(1)(a)(ii)

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

Why do we want to speak to industry? 
The Government wants to minimise the harm that can arise from young people accessing content online 
that is not appropriate for them. To do this, we want to consult with industry to understand what age 
assurance technology you are already using, what plans you have to respond to actions in other jurisdictions, 
and your views on what level of the tech stack age restriction can be applied. The trial is looking at age 
assurance technologies to keep young people safe online, but they need to be effective while also balancing 
privacy and security. We acknowledge that the conversation around age verification and assurance on social 
media is particularly complex.   

During the industry roundtable, we want to hear from you about the evidence behind the effects on children 
from using social media (good and bad), how willing Australians are to use different age assurance 
technologies to access social media and age restricted content, and what other initiatives might be effective 
from Government to support keeping children safe online. 

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
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